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APPENDIX 4E 
Preliminary Final Report 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 
 

Reporting entities and reporting periods 
The reporting entities are: 

1. Asia Pacific Data Centre Holdings Limited ACN 159 621 735 and its controlled entities 
(Group); and 

2. Asia Pacific Data Centre Trust ARSN 161 049 556 (APDC Trust). 
As permitted by Class Order 05/642 issued by the Australian Securities and Investments 
Commissions, the financial reports of the Group and APDC Trust are combined. 

Comparative figures are for the periods detailed in the table headings. 

Results for announcement to the market 
 Group 

 
For the  

year 
ended  

30 June 
2014 

$’000 

Group 
 

24 July 
2012 to 

30 June 
2013 

 
$’000 

Variance APDC 
Trust 

For the  
year 

ended  
30 June 

2014 
$’000 

APDC 
Trust 
1 Nov 

2012 to 30 
June 2013 

 
 

$’000 

Variance 

Revenue from ordinary 
activities 

23,714 3,886 Up 510% 23,713 3,883 Up 510% 

Statutory profit from ordinary 
activities after tax 
attributable to members 

21,755 3,314 Up 556% 21,755 3,314 Up 556% 

Statutory profit for the year 
attributable to members 

21,755 3,314 Up 556% 21,755 3,314 Up 556% 

Distributable earnings1 9,953 3,314 Up 200% 9,953 3,314 Up 200% 

 

1 The Group reports statutory profit attributable to members in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (AAS). 
Distributable earnings are a non-AAS measure that represents the Directors’ view of underlying earnings from ongoing operating 
activities for the of the amount available for distribution to securityholders from ongoing activities for the year, being statutory 
profit/loss after tax adjusted for unrealised fair value gains and rent received on unimproved land. 

Distributions for the year 
The following distributions were paid and payable by APDC Trust: 

Period to Distribution 
cents per security 

Record date Payment date 

30 September 2013 2.25 30 September 2013 31 October 2013 

31 December 2013 2.25 31 December 2013 27 February 2014 

31 March 2014 2.25 31 March 2014 29 April 2014 

30 June 2014 2.25 30 June 2014 29 August 2014 

Total 9.00   

Tax deferred amount 28.18%   
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Explanatory comments 
Revenue from ordinary activities comprises: 

 Group 
 

For the  
year ended  

30 June 
2014 

$’000 

Group 
 

24 July 
2012 to 

30 June 
2013 

$’000 

Variance APDC 
Trust 

For the  
year ended  

30 June 
2014 

$’000 

APDC 
Trust 

1 Nov 2012 
to 30 June 

2013 
 

$’000 

Variance 

Rental income 11,608 3,140 Up 270% 11,608 3,140 Up 270% 

Interest income 118 57 Up 107% 117 54 Up 107% 

Net gain from fair value 
adjustment on 
investment properties 

11,988 689 Up 1640% 11,988 689 Up 1640% 

Revenue from ordinary 
activities 

23,714 3,886 Up 510% 23,713 3,883 Up 510% 

 

Net tangible assets per security is: 
 Group 

 
30 June 

2014 
$’000 

Group 
 

30 June 
2013 

$’000 

Variance APDC 
Trust 

30 June 
2014 

$’000 

APDC 
Trust 

30 June 
2013 

$’000 

Variance 

Net tangible assets per 
security 

$1.11 $1.01 Up 10% $1.10 $1.00 Up 10% 

 

During the year, the Group: 

- earned a statutory profit of $21.76 million and distributable earnings of $9.95 million; 
- paid or provided for distributions of $10.35 million or 9.0 cents per security; 
- earned rental income ($11.6 million) and rent on unimproved land ($0.2 million).  Rentals for all 

three data centres increased in December 2013 by 2.2% as the result of a CPI review increase; 
- acquired the P1 Perth data centre base building for $23.8 million upon its practical completion on 

in November 2013.  The acquisition was funded by drawdown on an asset-secured debt facility 
from Bankwest (a division of Commonwealth Bank of Australia).  

- obtained independent valuations for all its data centre investment properties resulting in an 
increase in carrying value of the portfolio to $150.70 million; and 

─ successfully completed its PDS Forecast period and met all key milestones in its prospectus and 
product disclosure statement dated 3 December 2012 

 

Details of entities over which control has been gained or lost during the period: 

─ None. 

 

Details of any associates and Joint Venture entities required to be disclosed: 
─ None. 

 

Audit 

─ The accounts have been audited with an unqualified opinion. 
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For all other information required by Appendix 4E including a results commentary, please refer to the 
following documents: 
- Directors’ report 
- Combined Financial Reports for APDC Group and APDC Trust and accompanying notes 

(audited) 
- ASX results announcement 
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Asia Pacific Data Centre Group
Annual Financial Reports
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Directors' Report

The directors of Asia Pacific Data Centre Holdings Limited (APDC Holdings) and the directors of Asia Pacific
Data Centre Limited (APDC Limited) as responsible entity for Asia Pacific Data Centre Trust (APDC Trust)
(collectively 'the Directors') present their report for APDC Holdings and APDC Trust together with the
consolidated financial report of APDC Holdings and its controlled entíties (Group, APDC Group) and the
financial report of APDC Trust for the year ended 30 June 2014.

APDC Holdings and APDC Limited are both companies limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in
Australia. The registered office for both companies is Level 16, 55 Hunter Street, Sydney NSW 2000 and
principal place of business for both companies is 22 Market Street, Sydney NSW 2000.

The shares of APDC Holdings and units of APDC Trust are stapled and can only be traded as stapled
securities. Although there is no ownership interest between APDC Holdings and APDC Trust, APDC Holdings
is deemed to be the parent entity of the Group under Australian Accounting Standards.

1. Directors

The following persons have held office as Directors during the year:

lan Fraser

Greg Baynton

Chris Breach

Bevan Slattery

Francina Turner

John Wright

Chairman, Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Di rector

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

CEO, Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Mr Slattery resigned from the Board on 30 June 2014.

2. Principal activities

The Group's principal activity is to invest in data centre investment property in Australia.

APDC Trust owns the following data centre investment properties:

M1 Port Melbourne, Melbourne, VIC

31 Macquarie Park, Sydney, NSW

P1 Malaga, Perth, WA

There were no significant changes in the nature of the activities of the Group during the year

2.1 Objectives

The Group's objective is to provide investors with stable income sourced from rental income earned from its
data centres and the potentialfor capital growth.

ln order to achieve this objective, the Group owns a geographically diverse portfolio of data centres in three
Australian capital cities. The Group's data centre investment properties comprise the land and buildings. This
includes essential building service improvements but excludes the tenant's fit out such as the plant and
equipment and specialised data hall or data centre technical improvements. The land and buildings in the
current portfolio are leased on long{erm triple-net terms pursuant to which all maintenance, taxes, insurance
and outgoings are paid by the tenant, NEXTDC Limited (NEXTDC). The leases provide for upwards only
annual CPI rental increases and market reviews every 5 years, not exceeding 110% of the preceding year's
rent.
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3. Operating and financial review

3.1 Results of operations

The Group earned a statutory profit for the year of $21,755,000, representing earnings per stapled security of
18.92 cents.

The Group's distributable earnings for the year was $9,953,000, representing earnings per stapled security of
8.65 cents.

APDC Group reports statutory profit for the year in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (AASB).
Distributable earnings is the primary basis upon which distributions are determined by the Directors.
Distributable earnings are a non-AASB measure that represents the Directors' view of the amount available
for distribution to securityholders from ongoing activities for the year, as presented in the reconciliation
between statutory profit for the year and distributable earnings below:

APDC APDC APDC APDC
Group Group Trust Trust

I July 2013 to 24 July 2012to I July 2013 to I Nov 2013 to
30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2014 30 June 2013

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Statutory proft for the year

Net gain from fair wlue adjustment on

inr,estment properties(1 )

Rent on unimprored land for properties

under construction(2)

21,755

(1 1 , e88)

186

3,314 21,755

(68e) (1 1,e88)

689 186

3,314

(68e)

689
Distri butable earnings

Return of capital - expenses funded from

9,953 3,314 9,9s3 3,314

o
Total distribution for the year

397
10,350

343

3,657
397

10,350
343

3,657

Basic earnings per security (cents)
Distributable earnings per security (cents)

Distributions paid and payable

18.92
8.65

10,350
9.00

3.83
2.88

3,657
3.18Distributions sec

(1) Unrealised gains or losses, including unrealised fair value gains and losses on revaluation of investment properties. Refer to Notes
3(h) and 14.
Rent received on unimproved land for properties under construction is included in distributable earnings but is not included in
statutory profit or loss for the year. Under AASB, rent on unimproved land derived from land or on investment property under
construction or development, which directly relates to bringing an asset to the location and working condition of an ¡nvestment
property, is recognised as a reduction in the purchase price of the asset. Refer to Notes 3(h) and 14.

(21

The total distribution for the year is 9.00 cents per stapled security. lnterim distributions totalling 6.75 cents per
stapled security were paid on 31 October 2013, 27 February 2014 and 29 April 2014. A final distribution for
the year of 2.25 cents per stapled security will be paid on 29 August 2014.

Distributions to securityholders were 28.1ÙYo tax deferred.

Distributions paid and payable represent an annualised 8.3% yield on the stapled security price of $1.09 at
market close on 26 August 2014.
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The Group's revenue, direct trust expenses and responsible entity operating expenses for the year were

APDC APDC APDC
Group Group Trust

I July 2013 to 24 July 2012to I July 2013 to
30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2014

$'000 $'000

APDC
Trust

I Nov 2013 to
30 June 2013

$'000

Rent on land and buildings
M1, Melboume
S1, Sydney

4,740
5,318

2,471
1,121

237

4,740
5,318

2,471

1,121

237P1 Perth 1 736 736
11,794 3,829 11,794 3,829

Less: Rent on unimprored land for
properties under construction, recognised
as a reduction in ourchase orice (186) (689) (186) (689)

Total rental income

lnterest income
Net gain from fair wlue adjustment on
inrcstment properties

11,608

118

11,988

54

3,140

57

689

11,608

117

11,988

3,140

689

Total rerenue

Administration expenses
Audit and taxation fees
Compliance expenses
Directors'fees
Employee expenses
lnterest expense
Other expenses
Valuation fees

714 886 713 3,883

39
378

15

86
24
27

762
48

191

122

120
215
326
843

94
48

143
67
92

113
116

20
6

15

131

86
27

904

Total expenses 1,959 572 1,958 569

Profit before income tax expense 21,755 3,314 21,755 3,314

There were no movements in the total number of securities on issue for the Group and APDC Trust during the
year.

3.2 Direct property investments

APDC
Group

30 June 2014

APDC
Group

30 June 2013
$'000

APDC
Trust

30 June 2014
$'000

APDG
Trust

30 June 2013
$'000

M1, Melboume
S1, Sydney(1)

Pl. Perth

56,200
64,500
30,000

52,000
58,000
'13,330

s6,200
64,500
30,000

52,000
58,000
13,330

Total inrcstment properties at fair wlue 150,700 123,330 150,700 123,330

Net assets
Net le asset backin secun

127,669
1.11

116,657
1.01

126,519
1.10

1 15,507
1.00

The fair value of the assets is derived using the basis set out in Note 3(h) to the financial statements.

(1)The Bankwest Debt Facility is secured by a mortgage over S1 Sydney data centre asset. Refer Note 17.

All of the Group's data centres are wholly-owned by APDC Trust. The data centres are leased to NEXTDC for
an initial term of 15 years with options for up to another 25 years.
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The fair value of the investment properties is determined by the Directors by reference to the most recent
independent valuation for that property updated to take into account any changes in valuation factors.

The current rental income from the lease of M1 is $4,789,000 per annum. This investment property was
valued by an independent valuer at $56,200,000 as at 30 June 2014, an increase of $4,195,000 in the
carrying value as at 31 December 2013.

The current rental income from the lease of 51 is $5,372,000 per annum. This investment property was valued
by an independent valuer at $64,500,000 as at 30 June 2014, an increase of $6,500,000 in the carrying value
as at 3l December 2013.

The P1 data centre building was developed by NEXTDC and completed on 29 November 2013 at which time
the Group paid a development fee to NEXTDC. The development fee of $23,800,000 was fully funded by a
drawdown on APDC Trust's debt facility. As the terms of the debt facility were more favourable than the terms
of the convertible notes funding available under the development agreement, no convertible notes were
issued to NEXTDC in satisfaction of the development fee and this funding alternative is no longer available.

The lease to NEXTDC for the land and base building for the P1 data centre commenced on 30 November
2013. The current rental income from the lease of P1 is $2,650,000 per annum. This investment property was
valued by an independent valuer at $30,000,000 as at 15 January 2014, an increase of $1,107,000 in the
carrying value as at 31 December 2013.

The practical completion and payment of the development fee for the P1 base building completed the Group's
initial data centre portfolio, as outlined in the prospectus and product disclosure statement dated 3 December
2012.

Pursuant to the leases, a CPI increase of 2.2o/o was applied to the M1, 51 and P1 rentals effective
21 December 20'13.

3.3 Bankwest Debt Facility

APDC Trust entered into a five year facility on 13 November 2013 with Bankwest (a division of
Commonwealth Bank of Australia) (Bankwest) to provide the Group with up to $29 million of asset-secured
debt funding (Debt Facility). The Debt Facility is provided at market interest rates for a five year term, and is
secured by a mortgage over the 51 Sydney data centre asset.

At 30 June 2014, $25 million of the facility was drawn to fund the P1 base building development fee, repay a
$750,000 loan from NEXTDC and pay debt establishment costs (Core Debt).

APDC Trust has entered into a swap agreement to fix the floating interest rate component over $12.5 million
of the drawn amount for five years. The effective cost of the Core Debt (loan interest, margin and swap
interest) is 5.46% per annum as at 30 June 2014.

3.4 Real estate funds management

APDC Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of APDC Holdings, provides responsible entity services to APDC
Trust. During the year, APDC Limited charged APDC Trust a management fee equal to the cost to APDC
Limited to provide these services. Refer to Note 7 to the financial statements.

3.5 Events subsequent to reporting date

Since the end of the year, the Directors of APDC Holdings and APDC Limited are not aware of any matter or
circumstance not othenvise dealt with in the financial reports or the Directors' Report that has significantly
affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Group or APDC Trust, the results of those operations
or the state of affairs of the Group or APDC Trust in financial years subsequent to the year ended 30 June
2014.

3.6 Likely developments and expected results of operations

The Group will continue to collaborate with NEXTDC to optimise the alliance between the two entities. The
alliance period expires on 21 December 2015. Refer further to Note 24lo the financial statements.

As NEXTDC is the sole tenant of APDC Trust's properties, the Group will continue to monitor NEXTDC's
financial position and ability to make rental payments under the leases.

The management of the Group is currently performed by the Chief Executive Officer and a part{ime financial
controller. Outsourced service providers provide technical expertise for compliance, legal and other services.
Should the scale of operations of the Group alter then this management model will be reviewed.
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4. lnformation on Directors

The Board of APDC Holdings and the Board of APDC Limited have the same members and identical Board
Charters. The term Board hereafter should be read as a reference to both of these Boards.

Mr lan Fraser
I NDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE CHAI RMAN
AUDIT, RISK AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE MEMBER

Mr lan Fraser is a chartered accountant and non-executive company director with 45 years experience as a
business and accounting professional, including l0 years as a company director of listed and unlisted public
companies and 27 years as a partner with KPMG. He retired as a senior audit and corporate advisory partner
in2OO4.

Mr Fraser is a director of UQ Health Care Limited and a Councillor of the QIMR Berghofer Medical Research
lnstitute. He retired from the Boards of Wilson HTM lnvestment Group Ltd in 2013 after 7 years as a director
and RP Data Ltd in 2011 after 3 years as chairman and 5 years as a director.

Mr Fraser holds a Bachelor of Commerce from the University of Queensland, is a Fellow of the lnstitute of
Chartered Accountants in Australia and a Fellow of the Australian lnstitute of Company Directors.

Mr Greg Baynton
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr Greg Baynton is the founder and Managing Director of Orbit Capital, a boutique investment and advisory
company. He comes from a background in merchant banking and Queensland Treasury, and has experience
in infrastructure investment, capital raisings, lPOs, pre-lPO funding, corporate structuring and corporate
governance.

He has 16 years experience as a director of Australian public companies.

During this reporting period, Mr Baynton was a director of NEXTDC Limited (to 30 April 2014) and Coalbank
Limited (Io 22 November 2013). Mr Baynton was previously a director of PIPE Networks Limited and Tissue
Therapies Limited.

Mr Baynton holds a Bachelor of Business (Accountancy), a Master of Economic Studies from University of
Queensland, a Post-graduate Diploma in Applied Finance & lnvestment from the Securities lnstitute of
Australia, and a Master of Business Adminístration from Queensland University of Technology.

Mr Chris Breach
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
AUDIT, RISK AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE MEMBER

Mr Christopher Breach has over 35 years experience as a property professional and an extensive career
covering many types and aspects of the real estate market in Australia, New Zealand, UK and USA. Until
2010, Mr Breach was Managing Director and Licensee of Macquarie Asset Services Limited (part of
Macquarie Group Limited) and an executive director of Macquarie Group Limited. Mr Breach was an early
initiator of a due diligence product that became the cornerstone of real estate investment over the last 15
years.

Prior to joining Macquarie, Mr Breach was the Director of Valuations and Corporate Real Estate at Jones Lang
Wootton.

Mr Breach holds a Diploma in Estate Management from Kingston upon Thames Polytechnic and a Diploma in
Financial Markets from the Securities lnstitute of Australia. He is a Fellow of the Royal lnstitution of Chartered
Surveyors. Mr Breach was the Chairman of Charities Aid Foundation from 1999 to 2009, and was also
previously a director of Sydney Community Foundation
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Mr Bevan Slattery
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (resigned 30 June 2014)

Mr Bevan Slattery is founder of NEXTDC Limited and was its CEO until June 2012 and a director until October
2013.

Mr Slattery is founder of Megaport and was co-founder and director of PIPE Networks Limited and iseek
Communications Pty Ltd.

Mr Slattery has a background in building successful Australian lT and telecommunication companies and an
earlier career in government. Mr Slattery is the recipient of the ACOMM Australian Telecommunications
Ambassador of the Year Award in 2009 and ATUG's Charles Todd Medal in 2010.

He holds a Masters in Business Administration (Hon.) from Central Queensland University.

Ms Francina Turner
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, CEO & COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms Francina Turner is a senior executive with over l5 years experience in funds management, real estate,
specialised assets and risk management. Over her career, Ms Turner has held leadership roles in listed and
unlisted real estate funds with up to $1bn of funds under management.

Ms Turner started her career at Macquarie Group Limíted where she worked for l3 years in various real
estate divisions and funds, including as General Manager of Macquarie Leisure Trust (now Ardent Leisure
Group). Following this, Ms Turner held management roles in group-level risk functions at Lend Lease
Corporation and Stockland Group before joining the Group.

Ms Turner holds a Bachelor of Commerce (Marketing & Hospitality Management) from University of New
South Wales and a Graduate Diploma in Applied Finance from Securities lnstitute of Australia. Ms Turner is a
Fellow of the Royal lnstitution of Chartered Surveyors. Ms Turner was previously a director of Youth Hostels
of Australia (NSW) Limited and Omni Leisure Operations Limited, and Responsible Officer of Macquarie
Leisure Management Limited.

Mr John Wright
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
CHAIRMAN OF AUDIT, RISK AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

Mr John Wright has over 40 years experience in accounting and real estate funds management. He started
his career at Price Waterhouse as a chartered accountant and has a Bachelor of Economics from the
University of Sydney. Following this he worked for a number of funds management and property groups and
spent 16 years working for Macquarie Group Limited.

MrWright has extensive experience in REITs having spent 14 years at Macquarie Real Estate where he was
responsible for the administration aspects for 7 listed REITs (including 3 lPOs), as well as involvement in the
establishment of 11 unlisted RElTs. His last position was as Head of Corporate Affairs for Charter Hall Group
where he was responsible for the integration of the Macquarie real estate platform with Charter Hall.

He was an executive director of Macquarie Group Limited for 6 years and director of Macquarie Leisure Group
(now Ardent Leisure Group) for 2 years as well as alternate director for 3 other listed REITs during 2002-2009.
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4.1 Meetings of Directors

The number of Directors' meetings (including meetings of committees of directors) and number of meetings
attended by each of the directors of APDC Holdings and APDC Limited during the year are:

Director Board meetings

Total number of
meetings eligible

to attend Attended
lan Fraser

Greg Baynton

Chris Breach

Bevan Slattery (resigned 30 June 2014)

Francina Turner

John Wright

14

14

14

14

14

14

14

13

14

11

14

13

Director Audit, Risk and Gompliance
Committee meetings

Total number of
meetings eligible

to attend Attended
lan Fraser

Chris Breach

John Wright

5. Gompany Secretary

Ms Francina Turner is the company secretary. She was appointed to this position by the Board on 3
December 201 2.

6. Remuneration Report - audited

6.1 Remuneration objectives and approach

The objective of the Group's executive framework is to attract and retain high quality executives by ensuring
that executive remuneration:

o is competitive with prevailing employment market conditions; and
. is aligned to the Group's strategic goals and objectives and the creation of value for securityholders.

For the year ended 30 June 2014, the remuneration framework provided for fixed pay and performance based
pay.

ln developing the framework for any variable pay arrangements, the Group will have regard to ensuring a
relationship between remuneration policy and the Group's performance, including its earnings and
securityholder wealth.

The Board has adopted policies relating to remuneration as part of its Board Charter. The Charter sets out its
role and responsibilities.

6.2 Executive remuneration

(a) Fixed annual remuneration (FAR)

What is FAR? FAR is the guaranteed salary of the executive and includes superannuation and salary
sacrificed components such as motor vehicles, computers and superannuation.

FAR is set by reference to external market data for comparable roles and responsibilities
for an executive manager for a four day week of similar listed entities within Australia.

FAR is reviewed each year with any changes being effective from I January.

How is FAR set?

4

4

4

4

4

3

When is FAR reviewed?
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(b) Summary of key contract terms

Executive Position Contract
Length

Fixed Annual
Remuneration

Notice by
APDC

Notice by
executive

Francina Turner CEO and Company Secretary 3 years $215,000 3months 3months

(c) Remuneration details for year ended 30 June 2014

Details of the remuneration of the Key Management Personnel for the year ended 30 June 2014 are set out in
the following table:

Executive Short term TotalPost
employment

benefits

Other
Iong term

benefits

Equity
based

payments

Salary Performance
incentive

$$

Superannuation
benefits

$

Total

$ $$ $

Francina Turner

Year ended
30 June 2014

Period to
30 June 2013

190,141 50,000 257,729

96,676 105,377

The value of fixed remuneration as a proportion of total remuneration was 81% (period to 30 June 2013:
100%). The value of performance based remuneration as a proportion of total remuneration was 19% (period
to 30 June 2013: nil).

Short term incentives are based on performance relative to individual key performance indicators (KPls). ln
the period from establishment of the Group to 30 June 2014 most of the CEO's KPI's related to the
achievement of milestones included in the product and disclosure statement (PDS) dated 3 December 2012.
All the milestones were achieved and the CEO's responsibilities necessitated a full time role in the 13 month
period to 31 December 2013. Consequently Directors resolved to recognise the CEO's performance in the
period and paid her a cash bonus of $50,000.

The Group does not have a long term incentive plan.

6.3 APDC Group performance for the periods ended 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2014

The table below sets out summary information about the Group's earnings and movements in securityholder
wealth since the Group's establishment:

Year to Year to Period to Period to
30 June 2014 30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2013

Actual PDS foreca$ Actuat PDS forecasÉ(r)

Distri butable earninos $'000 9,953 9,600 3,314 3.200

240,141

96,676

17,588

8,701

Distribution oaid or oavable
cents per

securitv 9.00 9.00 3.18 3.20

Manaoementooeratinqexoenses $'000 1,116 1,000 552 600

Securitv orice(2) $1.06 $1.00(3) $1.07 $1.00(3)

Accumulated
securityholder retum Annual 7.7o/oØ) nla 15.5%(5)

(1) The PDS forecast period is the period from 21 December 2012 lo 30 June 2013.(2t Security price is the closing price for AJD securities on the last trading day of the period.(¡) Security price for PDS forecast comparison is the fully paid price per stapled security pursuant to the PDS(a) Annualised return for the year to 30 June 2014.
(5) Nominal return for the period from 9 January 2013 to 30 June 201 3.
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The total securityholder return for the year to 30 June 2014 is 7.7%.fhis compares to the S&P 300 ASX-
AREIT index accumulated return of 12.9% and S&P/ASX 200 index accumulated return of 21.5o/o for the same
period.

The performance of the Group relative to PDS Forecast was taken into account in determining the short term
performance incentives awarded in the year to 30 June 2014.

6.4 Non-executive director remuneration

Non-executive directors' individual fees are determined by the Board within the aggregate amount of $400,000
as previously approved.

The Board reviews its fees to ensure that non-executive directors are remunerated fairly for their services,
recognising the level of skill, expertise and experience required to conduct the role. The Board will review its
fees from time to time to ensure it is remunerating directors at a level that enables the Group to attract and
retain the right non-executive directors. The Board may obtain the advice of independent remuneration
consultants to ensure that non-executive directors' fees and payments are appropriate and in line with the
market. Non-executive directors do not receive any equíty based payments, retirement benefits or other
incentive payments.

Non-executive directors receive a cash fee for service and they have no entitlement to any performance
based remuneration, nor can they participate in any security incentive scheme.

Directors' fees for the year ended 30 June 2014, inclusive of superannuation entitlement, are as follows:

Non-executive director Board Audit, Risk and
Gompliance Gommittee

Per annum
fee

$

Per annum
fee

$

lan Frasedl)

Greg Baynton

Chris Breach

Bevan Slattery (resigned 30 June 2014)

John Wrighf'zt

60,000

50,000

50,000

50,000 5,000

(1) lan Fraser is the Chairman of the Board.
(2) John Wright is the Chairman of the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee.

6.5 Directors' interests in stapled securities

Number held at
I July 2013

Net Number held at
movement 30 June 2014

Number held at
27 August 2014

lan Fraser

Greg Baynton

Chris Breach

Bevan Slattery (resigned 30 June 2014)

Francina Turner

John Wright

50,000

16,605

20,500,000

50,000

16,605

20,s00,000

s0,000

16,605

50,000 50,000 s0,000

7. Auditor's independence declaration

The auditor's independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set
out on page 13.

8. lndemnification and insurance of officers and auditors

During the year, insurance was in place to insure the directors and officers of the Group. So long as the
officers of the Manager act in accordance with the Trust Constitution and the Corporations Act 2001, the
officers remain indemnified out of the assets of the Trust against losses incurred while acting on behalf of the
Trust. The auditor of the Trust is not indemnified out of the assets of the Trust.
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L Environmental regulation

The operations of the Group and APDC Trust are not subject to any particular and significant environmental
regulation under a law of the Commonwealth, State or Territory. Additionally, there have been no known
breaches of any environmental regulations applicable to the Group or APDC Trust.

10. Non-audit services

During the year KPMG, the auditor of the Group and APDC Trust, has performed certain other services in

addition to the audit and review of the financial statements.

The Board has considered the non-audit services provided during the year by the auditor and in accordance
with a recommendation from the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee, is satisfied that the provision of
those non-audit services during the year by the auditor is compatible with and did not compromise the auditor
independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 for the following reasons:

. all non-audit services were subject to the corporate governance procedures adopted by the Board and
have been reviewed by the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee to ensure they do not impact the
impartiality and objectivity of the auditor.

. none of the services undermine the general principles relating to auditor independence as set out in
APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants.

During the year, the following fees were paid or payable for non-audit services provided by the auditor of the
Group and APDC Trust, its related practices and non-related audit firms:

APDC APDC APDC APDC
Group Group Trust TrusÍ

I Jufy 2013 to 24 July 2012to I July 2013 to I Nov 2013 to
30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2014 30 June 2013

$$$$
Tax compliance servíces 34,890 6,915 30,538 6,846
Total remuneration of KPMG Australia
non-audit services 6.915 30.538 6.846

11. Rounding of amounts to the nearest thousand dollars

The Group and APDC Trust are of a kind referred to in Class Order 98/100 (as amended) issued by the
Australian Securities & lnvestments Commission relating to the "rounding off' of amounts in the directors'
report and financial report. Amounts in the Directors' Report and financial reports have been rounded to the
nearest thousand dollars in accordance with that Class Order, unless othenruise stated.

This report is made in accordance with resolutions of the Directors of Asia Pacific Data Centre Holdings
Limited and Asia Pacific Data Centre Limited as responsible entity for Asia Pacific Data Centre Trust.

J l¿.l-*
lan Fraser
Chairman

Brisbane
27 August2014
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Lead Auditor's lndependence Declaration under Secfion 307C of the
Corporations Act 2001

To: the directors of Asia Pacific Data Centre Holdings Limited and the Directors of Asia Pacific
Data centre Limited the Responsible Entity of Asia Pacific Data centre Trust

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audits of Asia Pacific
Data Centre Holdings Limited and Asia Pacific Data Centre Trust for the financial year ended 30
June2O14 there have been:

a no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the
Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audits; and

no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audits.a

KPMG

l<,Øvuf

ffiut'"ø
Jillian Richards
Partner

Brisbane
27 August2014
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Consolidated Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive lncome

APDC APDC APDC APDC
Group Group Trust Trust

I July 2013 to 24 July 2012to I July 2013 to I Nov 2013 to
30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2014 30 June 2013

Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Revenue
Rental income
lnterest income
Net gain ftom fair wlue adjustment on

inwstment orooerties

o 11,608
118

3,140
57

689

11,608
117

3,140
54

r4lb) 1 1,988 11,988 689
Total rerenue 23,714 3,886 23,713 3,883

Expenses
Operating expenses 1 , 1 16 552 1 ,054 530
lnterest expense and finance costs 843 20 904 39
Total exoenses 1,959 572 1,958 569

Profit before income tax expense
lncome tax expense

21,755 3,314 21,755 3,314
I

Profit for the year 21,755 3,314 21,755 3,314

Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of APDC Holdings
Owners of APDC Trust
Non+ontrolling interest - members of
APDC Trust

21,755 3,314

21,755 3,314
Total orofit for the vear 21,755 3,314 21,755 3,314

Other com prehe nsive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss:
Effectiw portion of changes in fair
wlue of cash flow hedoe 18(b) (3e3) (393)

Other comprehensive income, net
of tax
Total comprehensive income for
the year 21,362 3,314 21,362 3,314

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Owners of APDC Holdings
Owners of APDC Trust
Noncontrolling interest - members of
APDC Trust 21,362

21,362 3,314

3,314
Total comprehensive income for
the year 21,362 3,314 21,362 3,314

Basic and diluted eamings per

cents 10

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

Note

APDC
Group

30 June 2014
$'ooo

APDC
Group

30 June 2013
$'ooo

APDC
Trust

30 June 2014
$'000

APDC
Trust

30 June 2013
$'000

Gurrent assets
Cash and cash equiwlents
Trade and other receiwbles
Security deposit held
Prepayments

12

13

5 308
56

8
27

5,1 96
24

5

2

3,677
556

4,280
524

Total current assets 5,399 5,227 4,233 4,804

Non-current assets
lnwstment properties

Property, plant and equipment
Defened tax asset

14 150,700
2

15

123,330 150,700 123,330

Total non-current assets 150,717 123,330 150,700 123,330

Total assets 156,116 128,557 154,933 128,134

Gurrent liabilities
Trade and other payables

Tax payable
Provisions
Dewlopment fee accrued - P1

15

16

726
15

2,608

713

2,087
8,330

728

2,588

1,066

2,081
8.330

Total curre nt I ia bil ities 3,349 I I,130 3,316 11,477

Non-current liabilities
lnterest bearing liabilities
Deriwtiws

17

18(d)

24,705
393

24,705
393

1,150770

Tota I non-current lia bil ities 25,098 770 25,098 1,150

Total liabilities 28,47 11,900 28,414 12,627

Net assets

Equity
Contributed equity
Asset rewluation resene
Cashflow hedge resene
Retained eamings

127 669

1,150

11 657

1,150

1 519 11

115,110
11,802

(3e3)

115,50719

20

20

Total equity attributable to owners of
APDC Holdi ngs/APDC Trust
Non-controlling interest attributable to
APDC Trust 126,519

50

1 15,507

501 1I 126,519 115,507

Total e 127 669 11 657 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

519 11 507
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity - the Group

Note

Total equity
attributable to

owners of
Gontributed APDC

equity Holdings
$'000 $'000

Non-
controlling

interest
attributable to

APDC Trusú
$'000

Total
equity

$'ooo

Total equity at24 July 2012

Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit for the period

Other comprehensiw income for the
period

3,314 3,314

Total comprehensive income for
the period

Contributions by and diSributions to
owners of the Group
lssues of ordinary shares
Loan forgircn by NEXÍDC Limited
lssue of stapled securities under the Offer
Security-based payment - equity-
settled
Distributions paid or provided for

162 162

3,314

2,000
97,877

15,973
(3,657)

3,314

2,000
98,865

16,1 35
(3,657)

988988

Total contribution by and diSributionsto
owners of the Group 1,150 I ,150 112,193 113,343

Total equity at I July 2013 1,150 1,150 115,507 116,657

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensiw income for the year

21,755
(3e3)

21,755
(3e3)

Total comprehensive income for the year

Gontributions by and distributions to
owners of the Group
Distributions paid or provided for

21,362 21,362

(10,350) (10,350)
Total contribution by and disfributions to
owners of the Group (10,350) (10,350)

Total equity at 30 June 2014 1,150 I,150 126,519 127,669

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

16



Asia Pacific Data Gentre Group
Annual Financial Reports
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Statement of Changes in Equity - APDC Trust

Gontributed
equity

$'000

Asset
Retained revaluation
earnings reserve

$'000 $'000

Gashflow
hedge

reserve
$'ooo

Total
equity

$'000

Total equity at I Novembe¡ 2012

Total comprehensive income
for the period
Profit for the period

Other comprehensiw income for the
oeriod

3,314 3,314

Total comprehensive income
for the period 3,314 3,314

Gontributions by and didributions to
owners of the Trust
lssues of ordinary units
Loan forgircn by NEXIDC Limited 2,000
lssue of stapled securities under
the Ofier 97,877
Security-basedpayment-equity-settled 15,973
Transfer to asset rewluation resenê (689)
Distributions paíd or provided for (343) (2,625)

689

2,000

97,877
15,973

(3,657)(68e)
Total contribution by and
distributions to owners of the TrusÉ 115,507 (3,314) 112,193

Total eouitu at 30 June 2013 fis.507 115.507

Total comprehensive income
for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensirc income for the Vear

21,755
(3e3)

21,755
(3e3)

Tota I comprehensive income
for the vear 21,755 (393) 21,362

Gontributions by and disfributions to
owners of the Trust
Transfer to asset rewluation resene
Distributions oaid or orovided for

(11,988)
(9,767)

11,988
(186)1397) (10.350)

Total contribution by and
distributions to owners of the TrusÉ (3e7) (21,75s) 11,802 (10,350)

Total equity at 30 June 2014 It5,tt0 11,802 (393) 126,519

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Note

APDC APDC
Group Group

1 July 2013 to 24 July 2012to
30 June 2014 30 June 2013

$'ooo $'ooo

APDC
TrusÍ

I July 2013 to
30 June 2014

$'000

APDC
Trust

I Nov 2013 to
30 June 2013

$'ooo

Cashfl ows from operating activities
Receipts from lessee
Payments to suppliers and employees
Net GST receipt from/(payment to)ATO
lnterest receired

12,787
(3,581)

1,352
118

3,439
(1,e63)

1,384
48

12,787
(3,865)

1,395
117

3,439
(1,621)

1,379
45

Net cash inflowsfrom operating
activities 22h\ 10,676 2,908 10,4U 3.242

Gashfl ows from invesÍing activities
Payments for inrestment properties
Payment for property, plant and
equipment

(24,322) (e8,440) (24,322) (e8,440)

(2)
186Rent on unim land

Net cash outflowsfrom investinq activities 138) (97,751) (24,1361 (97,7s1)
689 186 689

Cashfl ows from financing activities
Proceeds fom issue of stapled securities
Proceeds from loans and bonowings
Repayment of loans and borrowings
Payment of loan to APDC Holdings
Receipt of loan proceeds ftom APDC
Holdings
Payment of interest and finance costs
Pavment of distributions 843) (1,576)

26,500
(2,250)

(833)

98,8ô5
2,750 26,500

(2,650)
(750)

97,715
2,650

750
(e08)

(9,843) (1,576)

Net cash inflowsfrom financinq activities 13,574 100,039 13,099 98,789

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equilalents at the beginning

112 5,1 96 (603) 4,280

of the
Cash and
the vear

196 280
equivalents at the end

5,308 5,196 3,677 4,280

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. Reporting entities

Asia Pacific Data Centre Group (APDC Group) comprises Asia Pacific Data Centre Holdings Limited (APDC
Holdings) and its wholly owned subsidiary Asia Pacific Data Centre Limited (APDC Limited), and Asia Pacific
Data Centre Trust (APDC Trust).

The shares of APDC Holdings are stapled to units in APDC Trust. The stapled securities cannot be traded or
dealt with separately. The Constitutions of APDC Holdings and APDC Trust ensure that, for so long as the two
entities remain jointly quoted, the number of shares of APDC Holdings and the number of units in APDC Trust
are equal and shareholders and unitholders are identical.

APDC Holdings was registered as a company on 24 July 2012, APDC Limited registered as a company on 25
July 2012, and APDC Trust was established on 1 November 2012. All of the entities are domiciled in Australia.
APDC Group was established on 3 December 2012 and was quoted on the Australian Securities Exchange
(ASX Code: AJD) from 9 January 2013.

The reporting entities are APDC Holdings and its controlled entities (APDC Limited and APDC Trust) and
APDC Trust (collectively 'Group entities').

The consolidated financial statements of APDC Holdings incorporate the assets and liabilities of APDC
Holdings and its controlled entities APDC Limited and APDC Trust (Group, APDC Group).

As permitted by Class Order CO 051642, issued by the Australian Securities & lnvestments Commission, this
report presents the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the financial statements of APDC
Trust, and their accompanying notes.

The Group entities are for-profit for the purpose of preparing the financial statements.

2. Basis of preparation

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (AASBs) adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards
Board (AASB) and the Corporations Act 2001. The financial statements comply with lnternational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted by the lnternational Accounting Standards Board.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on the date the Directors' Report
is signed. The Directors have the power to amend and reissue the financial statements.

The Group and APDC Trust are of a kind referred to in Class Order 98/100 (as amended) issued by the
Australian Securities & lnvestments Commission relating to the "rounding offl' of amounts in the directors'
report and financial report. Amounts in the Directors' Report and financial reports have been rounded to the
nearest thousand dollars in accordance with that Class Order, unless otherwise stated.

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for investment
properties and derivative financial instruments which have been measured at fair value.

(c) Significant judgements and estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

ln applying accounting policies, management continually evaluates judgements, estimates and assumptions
based on experience and other factors, including expectations about future events that may have an impact
on the Group entities. Alljudgements, estimates and assumptions made are believed to be reasonable based
on the most current set of circumstances available to management. Actual results may differ from the
judgements, estimates and assumptions.
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Significant judgements, estimates and assumptions made by management in the preparation of these
financial statements are outlined below.

. lnvestment properties - operating leases

APDC Trust has commercial property leases on its investment portfolio, and earned rent on the M1,
51 and P1 properties during the year.

The Directors have determined that APDC Trust retains all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of these properties and has thus classified the leases as operating leases (refer Note 3(g)).

. lnvestment properties - valuation

At each reporting date, the fair values of the investment properties are assessed by the Directors
according to the accounting policy on valuing assets and applying generally accepted valuation
criteria, methodology and assumptions (refer Note 3(h)).

. lnvestment properties under construction - valuation

lnvestment properties under construction are valued using a continuous transfer approach with
reference to surveys of completed work performed. The value of completed work performed is
accrued as a development fee.

(d) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the functional currency of the Group
entities.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The significant policies which have been adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2O14 are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied, unless
otherwise stated.

The Group entities have not early adopted any accounting standards.

(a) Ghanges in accounting policies

The Group and APDC Trust have adopted the following new standards and amendments to standards,
including any consequential amendments to other standards, with a date of initial application of I July 2013.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement
AASB 13 establishes a single framework for measuring fair value and making disclosures about fair value
measurements when such measurements are required or permitted by other AASBs. lt unifies the definition of
fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. lt replaces and expands the disclosure
requirements about fair value measurements in other AASBS, including AASB 7. As a result, the Group has
included additional disclosures in this regard. Refer to Notes 14 and 18.

ln accordance with the transitional provisions of AASB 13, the Group and APDC Trust have applied the new
fair value measurement guidance prospectively, and have not provided any comparative information for new
disclosures. Notwithstanding the above, the application of AASB 13 had no significant impact on the
measurement of the Group's and APDC Trust's assets and liabilities.

AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements,
AASB 10 introduces a new control model that focuses on whether the Group has power over an investee,
exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and ability to use its power to
affect those returns. ln accordance with the transitional provisions of AASB 10, the Group reassessed the
control conclusion for its investees at 1 July 2013. There was no change to the Group's control conclusion in
respect of its investments in its subsidiaries.
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AASB 12 Disclosures of lnterests in Other Entities
AASB 12 sets out the requirements for disclosures relating to an entity's interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and structured entities. The disclosure requirements in AASB 12 are set out in
these financial statements. There was no material impact on the financial report as a result of the adoption of
this standard.

Other new or amended Accounting Standards
The Group has also adopted the following new or amendments to accounting standards for the year ended 30
June 2014:

. AASB 119 Employee benefits;

o AASB 2011-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive lncome;

. AASB 2011-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting - Standards to Remove lndividual Key
Management Personnel Disclosure Requirements; and

. Disclosures - Offsetting FinancialAssets and Financial Liabilities (Amendments to AASB 7).

There was no material impact on the financial report as a result of the adoption of these new or amended
Accounting Standards.

(b) Principles of consolidation

Stapling
The shares of APDC Holdings are stapled to units of APDC Trust. These stapled shares and units are also
referred to as stapled securities and/or securities.

Stapling transactions are considered business combinations and are accounted for under AASB 3 Business
Combinations using the acquisition method at the acquisition date.

AASB 3 requires one of the combining entities in a stapling transaction to be identified as the acquirer for
accounting purposes. The acquirer is also the parent entity of the Group. The parent entity is required to
prepare consolidated financial statements in accordance with the principles of AASB 3 and AASB 127
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements.

Where a business combination occurs through contract alone, the acquirer attributes the acquiree's net assets
recognised in accordance with AASB 3 to the owners. Any equity interest held by the parties other than the
acquirer is a non-controlling interest.

APDC Holdings has been identified as the acquirer and the parent for the purposes of preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. Therefore APDC Limited and APDC Trust are included in the
consolidated financial statements of APDC Holdings.

APDC Holdings does not own any units in the APDC Trust and there was no consideration paid.

Non-controlling interests in the financial statements of the Group represent the equity attributable to
unitholders of APDC Trust. Non-controlling interest is defined as that portion of the profit or loss and net
assets of APDC Trust and its subsidiaries which are not owned by APDC Holdings (parent) directly or
indirectly through subsidiaries. On the basis that APDC Holdings has no ownership interest in APDC Trust,
the net assets of the APDC Trust are identified as non-controlling interests and presented in the Group's
Statement of Financial Position within equity separately from the APDC Holding's shareholders equity.

The $1.00 issue price per stapled security is allocated as $0.99 to each APDC Trust unit and $0.01 to each
APDC Holdings share. The profit or loss of APDC Trust is separately disclosed as non-controlling interest in
the profit or loss of the Group.
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Su bsid ia ries
Subsidiaries are entíties controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to or has
rights to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and líabilities of the subsidiary and
any related non-controlling interest and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost.

lntra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted investees are
eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group's interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of the impairment of the asset transferred.

(c) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

The Group and APDC Trust recognise revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that future economíc benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the
activities as described below.

Revenue is recognised for each of the business activities as follows:

Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Rent on unimproved land derived from land or an investment property under construction or development,
which directly relates to bringing an asset to the location and working condition of an investment property, is
recognised as a reduction in the purchase price of the asset.

lnterest income
lnterest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

(d) Expenses

All expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis.

Expenses which are incidental to the acquisition of an investment property are included within the cost of that
property.

(e) Taxation

APDC Holdings and APDC Limited
lncome tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. lncome tax is recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is
recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous financial
years.

Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at balance date on the difference between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available, against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognised for:
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. temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a
business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

. temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent
that it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

. taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the asset is
realised through the continued use or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted at the balance date.

APDC Trust
Under current Australian tax legislation, the APDC Trust is not liable for income tax, provided that the taxable
income (including any assessable component of any capital gains from the sale of investment assets) is fully
distributed to unitholders each year.

Distributions in excess of the taxable income of the APDC Trust are treated as tax deferred distributions.

The tax deferred component reduces a securityholder's capital gains tax base applicable to the units held in
APDC Trust.

(f) Goods and Services Tax

The Group entities are part of a Goods and Services Tax (GST) consolidated group.

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except where the GST is incurred
on a purchase of goods and services and is not recoverable from the taxation authority. ln these
circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of the acquisition of the asset or as part of the
expense.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST recoverable
from or payable to the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of
financial position.

Cash flows are included in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis. The GST component of cash flows
arising from investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority,
is classified as operating cash flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the
taxation authority.

(g) Operating leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Properties leased under operating leases are classified as investment properties. The Directors have
determined that APDC Trust retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of its investment
properties and has thus classified the leases as operating leases.

(h) lnvestment properties

lnvestment properties comprising freehold land and buildings (including certain plant and equipment) are held
for long term rental yields and capital appreciation and are not occupied by the Group or APDC Trust.

The acquisition of land and buildings is accounted for as an asset acquisition. lnvestment properties are
initially recognised at cost including any acquisition costs.

Fair value
lnvestment properties are carried at fair value at each reporting date with any gain or loss arising from a
change in fair value recognised as profit or loss in the year. Land and buildings (including certain plant and
equipment)that comprise investment property are not depreciated.

The fair value of investment properties is assessed by the Directors, in accordance with AASB 13 Fair Value
Measuremenf, using a valuation technique to estimate the price at which an orderly transaction to sell the
asset would take place between market participants under current market conditions.
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At each reporting date, the fair value of the investment properties is assessed by the Directors by reference to
independent valuation reports or through other appropriate valuation techniques.

The potential effect of capital gains tax (CGT) on disposal has not been taken into account in the
determination of the revalued carrying amount as it is expected that all realised gains on the sale of assets will
be distributed to securityholders.

lnvestment properties u nder construction
lnvestment properties under construction are initially recognised when effective control and the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the building works completed are transferred to APDC Trust.

The Directors have determined that the significant risk and rewards of ownership of the investment property
under construction transfer progressively as construction progresses.

Accordingly, APDC Trust will recognise investment property under construction under the continuous transfer
approach with reference to the stage of completion of the development. The stage of completion is assessed
by reference to surveys of work performed.

At each reporting date, investment property under construction is carried at fair value.

Subsequent costs
APDC Trust recognises in the carrying amount of an investment property the cost of replacing part of that
investment property when that cost is incurred if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied
within the item will flow to the consolidated entity and the cost can be measured reliably. All other costs are
recognised in the profit or loss as an expense as incurred.

(¡) Acquisition of assets

The purchase method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired.

Cost is measured at the fair value of the assets given up.

Securities issued or líabilities assumed at the date of acquisition plus incidental costs are directly attributable
to the acquisition. Transaction costs arising on the issue of equity instruments are recognised directly in
equity.

ü) Security-based payment

An equity-settled security-based payment is measured at the fair value of the goods or services received, and
the corresponding increase in equity.

During the prior period, the Group entities contracted to acquire a portfolio of assets which consist of three
data centre properties located in Melbourne (M1), Sydney (S1) and Perth (Pl) from NEXTDC Limited
(NEXTDC), a then related party, at valuations assessed by an independent valuer.

The consideration paid during the prior period comprised proceeds from the issue of partly paíd stapled
securities under the initial public offer and partly paid stapled securities issued to NEXTDC under a
su bscription agreement.

The partly paid stapled securities issued to NEXTDC were recorded as an equity-settled security-based
payment.

(k) Gash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the Statements of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on
hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts, if applicable, are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities in the Statements of Financial Position.
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(l) Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. They are presented as current assets unless
collection is not expected for more than 12 months after the reporting date.

The effective interest rate is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial
liability and of collating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, cash flow estimates consider all contractual
terms of the financial instruments.

Short term receivables are not discounted where the effect is not material.

Partly paid securities
For partly paid securities, where there is a fixed schedule of definite call dates when the securityholders must
pay instalments of the outstanding amount on the securities, and the securityholder is contractually obliged to
pay, a receivable is recognised for the outstanding future proceeds at the issue date of the securities, with a
corresponding entry in equity.

The receivable is a financial asset and measured at fair value on initial recognition and subsequently at
amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest rate.

lmpairment
An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a 'loss event') and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.

(m) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less deprecíation and impairment. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to its acquisition. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be reliably
measured.

Depreciation on office equipment is calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost or revalued
amounts, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life of office
equipment is 3 years.

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate at each reporting date.
An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying
amount if greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

(n) Non-derivative financial liabilities

Non-derivative financial liabilities comprise interest bearing loans, development fee accrued and trade and
other payables. The Group entities classify non-derivative financial liabilities into the other liabilities category.

Such liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method.

Short term non-derivative financial liabilities are not discounted where the effect is not material.
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(o) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risk exposure

Derivatives (including interest rate swaps) are recognised initially at fair value. Any directly attributable
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as they are incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition,
derivatives are remeasured to their fair value at each reporting date.

The Group documents at the inception of the hedging transaction the relationship between the hedgíng
instrument and hedged item, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge
transaction. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of
whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions have been and will continue to be highly
effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair
value of the derivative is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the cash flow hedge
reserve. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

The amount accumulated in equity is retained in other comprehensive income and reclassified to profit or loss
in the same period or periods during which the hedge item affects profit or loss.

lf the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised, or the designation is revoked, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively.

(p) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group entities have a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the
amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the balance date.

(q) Employee benefits

Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and annual leave expected to be settled
wíthin 12 months after the end of each reporting period in which the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liability for annual leave is recognised in
provisions.

Other long term employee benefit obligations
The liabilityfor long service leave and annual leave which is not expected to be settled within 12 months after
the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related service is recognised in the
provision for employee benefits and measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made
in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit
credit method. Consideration is given to the expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee
departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the end of
the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely
as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

Retirement benefit obligations
Except for the statutory superannuation guarantee charge, the Group does not have any other retirement
benefit obligations.
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(r) Contributed equity

APDC Holdings
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

APDC Trust
Under its Constitution, APDC Trust has been established as an indefinite life trust and the distributions are at
the discretion of the Directors of the responsible entity. Accordingly, the units issued are classified as equity.

Costs of issue of new stapled securities
Costs directly attributable to the issue of new stapled securities are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds. lncremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new stapled securities or options for
the acquisition of a new business are not included in the cost of acquisition as part of the purchase
consideration.

(s) Dividends/distributions

APDC Holdings
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at
the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.

APDC Trust
Each reporting period the Directors of the responsible entity are required to determine the distribution
entitlement of the unitholders of the Trust in respect of the period. Any amounts so determined but not paid by
the end of the period, are recorded as a liability.

(t) Earnings per security

Basic earnings per security
Basic earnings per security is determined by dividing profit attributable to securityholders by the weighted
average number of ordinary securities on issue during the period.

Diluted earnings per security
Diluted earnings per security is determined by dividing profit attributable to securityholders by the weighted
average number of ordinary securities and dilutive potential ordinary securities on issue during the period.

Profit attributable to APDC Trust
The issued units of APDC Trust are presented as a non-controlling interest, and therefore the profit
attributable to APDC Trust is excluded from the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per security
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

(u) Comparative information

APDC Group
The comparative figures for the Group are for the period from incorporation on 24 July 20121o 30 June 2013.
Users of this financial report should note that whilst the comparative figures for the Group commenced on 24
July 2012, the investment activities of the Group commenced in December 2012.

Therefore, the comparative figures for the Group include results from investment activities from December
2012 to 30 June 2013 only.

APDC Trust
The comparative figures for APDC Trust are for the period from establishment on 1 November 2012 to 30
June 201 3.

During 2014, APDC Trust transferred the net gain from fair value adjustment on investment properties from
retained earnings to the asset revaluation reserve. Comparative amounts in the statement of changes in
equity were reclassified for consistency. There was no impact on the balances as previously reported. Refer to
Note 20 for further details.
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4. Segment information

The Group entities present operating segments based on the internal information that is available to the Chief
Executive Officer (CEO), who is the Group's chief operating decision maker.

The Group entities operate wholly within Australia and derive rental income from investments in commercial
property and 100 per cent of this income is derived from one tenant and as such this is considered to be the
only segment in which the Group and APDC Trust is engaged.

The operatíng results are regularly reviewed by the CEO to make decisions about resources to be allocated
and to assess performance. There are no reconciling items that exist between the discrete financial
information reviewed by the CEO and the financial statements relating to revenue, profit or loss, assets and
liabilities or other material items.

5. New accounting standards and interpretations

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for future annual
reporting periods, and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements. Those
which may be relevant to the Group entities are set out below. The Group entities do not plan to adopt these
standards early.

(a) AASB 9 Financial lnstruments (December 2010) (includes financial assets and financial liability
requirements) (effective I January 2018, previously I January 20171.

ln AASB 9 (December 2010), the AASB added requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities that are generally consistent with the equivalent requirements in AASB 139 except in
respect of the fair value option and certain derivatives linked to unquoted equity instruments. The AASB also
added the requirements in AASB 139 in relation to the derecognition of financial assets and liabilities to
AASB 9.

AASB 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes two primary measurement
categories for financial assets amortised cost and fair value. The basis of classification depends on the entity's
business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. The guidance in AASB
139 on impairment of financialassets and on hedge accounting continues to apply.

The Group entities do not expect the new standard to have a significant effect on existing financial assets and
financial liabilities.

(b) Other amendments

ln addition to the above, further amendments to accounting standards have been proposed as a result of the
revision of related standards and the Annual lmprovement Projects (for non-urgent changes). These
amendments are as follows:

. AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial liabilities (Amendments to AASB 132) (effective 1 January 20'14),

. AASB 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets (effective 1 January 2O14);

. AASB 2013-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting (effective I January 2014); and

. MSB 2013-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards- lnvestment Entities (effective from I
January 2014).

These recently issued or amended standards are not expected to have a significant impact on the amounts
recognised in these financial statements on application of these new accounting standards.
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6. Rental income

APDC APDC APDC
Group Group Trust

I July 2013 to 24 July 2012to I July 2013 to
30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2014

$'000 $'000 $'000

APDC
Trust

I Nov 2013 to
30 June 2013

$'000

Rent on land and buildings
Less Rent on unimprored land for

prooerties under construction

11,794 3,829 11,794 3,829

(689)(186) (689) (186)
Total rental income fi,608 3.140 1r,608 3.140

7. Responsible entity management fees

APDC Limited, the responsible entity of APDC Trust, is entitled to a management fee calculated as up to 2%
per annum of the gross asset value of APDC Trust. lt is payable from the income (or other assets) of APDC
Trust, as and when incurred.

As long as there is an internal management structure, wherein APDC Límited provides responsible entity
services to APDC Trust and APDC Trust is stapled to APDC Holdings, APDC Limited will only charge APDC
Trust on a cost recovery basis for the direct APDC Trust expenses and for the operating expenses of APDC
Holdings and APDC Limited.

Management fees of $747,000 were expensed by APDC Trust during the year.

8. Remuneration of auditor

During the year, the auditor of the Group entities earned the following remuneration:

APDC APDC APDC
Group Group Trust

1 July 2013 to 24 July 2012to I July 2Û13to
30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2014

$ $ $

APDG
Trust

I Nov 2013 to
30 June 2013

$

Audit and rer,iew of financial statements
Other regulatory audits
Taxation senices

73,224
13,390
34,890

47,000
13,000
6,915

47,046
8,240

30,538

9,000
8,000
6,846

Tota I a uditor rem uneration 121,504 66,915 85,824 23,846
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9. Income tax

APDC APDC APDC
Group Group Trust

I July 2013 to 24 July 2012to I July 2013 to
30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2014

$'000 $'000 $'000

APDC
TruS

I Nov 2013 to
30 June 2013

$'ooo

Profit for the year 21,755 3,314 21,755 3,314

Tax expense at the Australian tax rate of 30%

Tax effect of amountswhich are not
deductible/(taxable) in ca lculating
taxable income:
APDC Trust income
Efiect of defened tax assets/(liabilities) for
temporary differences not brought to account
Effect of defened tax asset for tax losses not
brouqht to account

6,527

(6,527)

994

(ee4)

(1)

1

6,527

(6,527)

994

(ee4)

lncome tax expense

(a) APDC Trust

Under current Australian tax legislation, APDC Trust is not liable for income tax, provided that the taxable
income (including any assessable component of any capital gains from the sale of investment assets) is fully
distributed to unitholders each year.

Distributions in excess of the taxable income of APDC Trust are treated as tax deferred distributions.

The tax deferred component reduces a securityholder's capital gains tax base applicable to the units held in

APDC Trust.

10. Earnings per security

APDC APDC APDC APDC
Group Group Trust Trust

1 July 2013 to 24 July 2012to I July 2013 to I Nov 2013 to
30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2014 30 June 2013

Eamings used in the calculation of earnings
per security ($'OOO¡ 21,755

Basic eamings per security (cents) 18.92
Diluted earnings per security (cents) 18.92

Weighted a\êrage number of securities on
issue used in the calculation of basic and
diluted eamings per security 115,000,100 61,198,930 115,000,100

3,314

3.83
3.83

86,487,703

Distributable eamings ($'0OO¡(tl

Distributable eamings per security (cents)(2)

Weighted a\erage number of securities on

issue used in the calculation of distributable
eamings per security

9,953

8.65

3,314

2.88

115,000,100 115,000,100

Refer to Note 11.

Distributable earnings per security for the period ended 30 June 2013 is calculated by dividing the distributable earnings by the
number of securities on issue at 30 June 2013.

(1)

(21
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11. Distributions paid and payable

The following distributions were paid and payable by APDC Trust:

DiSribution
cents per

Total
amount

$'000

Tax
deferred

otto

Taxable
stapled security o/o

For the year ended 30 June 2014:
Distributions for the quarter ended:
30 September 2013
31 December2Ol3
31 March 2014
30 June 2014 /oavable 29 Auqust 2014\

2.25
2.25
2.25
2.25

2,587
2,588
2,587
2,588

9.00 10,350 28.18 71.82

For the period ended 30 June 2013
Distributions for the quarter ended:
31 March 2013
30 June 2013

1.37
1.81

1,576
2 081

3.18 3,657 28.58 71.42

Distributable earnings was $9,953,000 or 8.65 cents per stapled security. The distribution paid and payable
included a return of capital of $397,000 as detailed below.

APDC APDC APDC
Group Group TruS

I July 2013 to 24 July 2012to I July 2013 to
30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2014

$'000 $'ooo $'ooo

APDC
Trust

I Nov 2013 to
30 June 2013

$'ooo

Statutory profit for the year

Net gain from fair wlue adjustment on

inwstment properties(1 )

Rent on unimprowd land for properties

under construction(2)

21,755

(1 1,988)

186

3,314 21,755

(68e) (11,e88)

689 186

3,314

(68e)

689
Distri butable earni ngs

Return of capital - expenses funded from
ore-lPO caoital

9,953

397

3,314

343

9,953 3,314

397 343
DisÉribution paid and payable 10,350 3,657 10,350 3.657

(1) Unrealised gains or losses, including unrealised fair value gains and losses on revaluation of investment properties. Refer to Notes
3(h) and 14.

(2\ Rent received on unimproved land for properties under construction is included in dishibutable earnings but is not included in
statutory profit or loss for the year. Under AASB, rent on unimproved land derived from land or on investment property under
construction or development, which directly relates to bringing an asset to the location and working condition of an investment
property, is recognised as a reduction in the purchase price of the asset. Refer to Notes 3(h) and 14.

The 28.18% tax deferred component of the distribution includes buildíng allowance, building depreciation,
timing differences and return of capital.
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12. Gash and cash equivalents

APDG
Group

30 June 2014
$'ooo

APDG
Group

30 June 2013
$'000

APDC
Trust

30 June 2014
$'ooo

APDC
Trust

30 June 2013
$'ooo

Cash at bank
Cash on deposit

4,536
772

4,443
753

3,677 4,280

Total cash and cash equivalents 5,308 5,196 3,677 4,280

During the year, all cash assets were placed with Commonwealth Bank of Australia and Bankwest in interest
bearing bank accounts. At 30 June2O14, the weighted average interest rate on all cash assets was 1.8% per
annum.

13. Trade and other receivables

APDC
Group

30 June 2014

$'000

APDC
Group

30 June 2013

$'ooo

APDC
Trust

30 June 2014

$'ooo

APDC
Trust

30 June 2013

$'000

Trade receiwbles
Adwnce to APDC Limited

24
500

56

500

2456

Total trade and other receivables 56 24 556 524

At 30 June 2014, APDC Trust has an intercompany receivable of $500,000 representing an advance for
working capital to APDC Limited. The loan is repayable on demand and interest free.

14. lnvestment properties

APDC Trust has three investment properties, Melbourne (M1), Sydney (S1) and Perth (P1). The Trust has
lease agreements over the properties with NEXTDC on a triple net basis and for a 15 year initial term with
options for up to another 25 years. NEXTDC has made rental payments for M1, 51 and P1 in accordance with
the lease agreements. Rental payments for P1 commenced on 30 November 2013 following practical
completion of the base building.

Rent on unimproved land received during the year for P1 whilst it was under construction was recognised as a
reduction in the purchase price of the asset, and not as rental income. Refer Note 3(c).

(a) Basis of valuation

The carrying amount of investment property is the fair value of the property as assessed by the Directors
(refer Note 3(h)).

The Directors assess fair value based on the most recent independent valuation updated to take into account
any changes in estimated rental income, property capitalisation rates or estimated yields with reference to
market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties.

lndependent valuations when obtained, are performed by an independent valuer with a recognised
professional qualification and recent experience in the location and category of property being valued. The
independent valuations utilise the following methodologies: active market prices, capitalisation of net income
and discounted cash flow:

i. The active market prices method assesses a propefty's value based on the sale price of
comparable properties that have recently traded in commercial, arms length transactions.

ii. The capitalisation of net income method capitalises the current rent received, at a rate analysed
from the most recent transactions of comparable property investments, adjusted to take into
consideration a number of factors including:
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. lease term remaining;

. the relationship of current rent to the market rent;

. the location;
o prevailing investment market conditions; and
. other property specific conditions.

i¡i. The discounted cash flow method calculates a property's value by using projections of future cash
flows, derived from the term of any existing leases, and from external evidence such as current
market rents for similar properties in the same area and condition, and using discount rates that
reflect the current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of cash flows
specific to the asset.

lndependent valuations for each investment property will take place at a minimum of once every three years
or earlier should the Directors consider it appropriate.

ln adopting the investment property valuations at reporting date, the Directors considered an independent
valuation dated 30 June 2014 for M1, an independent valuation dated 30 June 2014 for 51 and an
independent valuation dated l5 January 2014 for P1.

(b) Fair value of investment properties

A reconciliation of the carrying amount of investment properties is set out below:

APDC APDC APDC APDC
Group Group Trusú Trud

Year to Period to Year to Period to
30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2014 30 June 2013

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year
Acquisition costs incuned
Capital improrements
Rent on unimprorcd land for properties under
construction
Fair wlue adiustments

123,330 123,330

15,568 15,568

(68e)

Carrying amount at the end of the year 150,700 123,330 150,700 123,330

(c) Measurement of fair value

Fair value hierarchy
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement (AASB 13) requires the disclosure of fair values for each of the following
measurem ent categories :

. Level l: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group
can access at the measurement date.

. Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.

. Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The fair value measurement of investment properties of $150,700,000 has been categorised as Level 3.

During the year, there were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value categories.

98,1 65
25,165

(68e)

689

98,165
25,165

(186)

1 1,988
(186)

'11,988 689
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Significa nt u nobserva ble inputs
Refer to the table in Note l4(d) for significant unobservable inputs and the valuation method used for each
investment property.

The table includes the following descriptions and definitíons relating to valuation techniques and significant
unobservable inputs made in determining the fair values:

Annual net property
income (m2 per annum)

The annual rent per square metre at which space could be let in the market
conditions prevailing at the date of valuation.

Capitalisation rate The rate at which net property income is capitalised to determine the value of a
property. The rate is determined with regard to market evidence.

Discount rate The rate used to discount the net cash flows generated from rental and
investment activities during the period of analysis (estimated for up to 10 years).

Lease expiry The date at which the lease finishes (excluding options).

Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable inputs

The relationship between the significant unobservable inputs and fair value is as follows:

. Annual net property income: the higher the income the higher the likelihood of a higher valuation

. Capitalisation rate: the lower the capitalisation rate the higher the likelihood of a higher valuation

r Discount rate: the lower the discount rate the higher the likelihood of a higher valuation

. Lease expiry: the longer the lease term the higher the likelihood of a higher valuation
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(d) Fair value of investment properties

Acquisition
date

21t12t2012

21t12t2012

21t12t2012

Level 3

Level 3

Lewl3

Rent on
unimproved

land úor
properties

under
construction

$'ooo

(452)

(423)

(875ì

Fair value
adjustments

since
acquisition

$'000

4,195

6,952

1,530

12.677

Fair value
as at

30 June
2014

$'000

56,200

64,500

30,000

lndependent
valuer

Date of lasú
independent

valuation
lndependent

valuation
$'ooo

56,200

64,500

30,000

Property

M1, Melbourne

S1, Sydney(1)

Pl, Perth

Total

lndependentvaluers: 1.
2.
3.

Capital
improvements

Acquisition since
price acqusition
$'000 $'000

52,000

41,165

5,000

$ 276

$ 269

$ 277

5

16,835

23,893

1

2

3

3010612014

3010612014

1510112014

98,165 40.733

Andrew Lett, AAPI CBRE Valuations Pty Ltd
Kenny Duncanson, AAPI MRICS, CBRE Valuations Pty Ltd
Jason Fenner, AAPI, CBRE Valuations Pty Ltd

150.700

Valuation methods

Capitalisation and discounted cash flow method

Capitalisatíon and discounted cash flow method

The investment properties are carried at fair value of the property as assessed by the Directors by reference to the most recent independent valuation for that
property (as listed in the above table) updated to take into account any changes in valuation factors (refer Note 14(a) Basis of Valuation).

Significant unobservable inputs as defined in Note 14(c), including the capitalisation rates and discount rates adopted in the independent valuations, are provided
below.

Fair value Annual net Adopted
hierarchy property income capitalisation Adopted

Property category(2) (m2 per annum) rate discount rate Lease expiry

M1, Melbourne

51, Sydney

Pl, Perth

(1) The Bankwest Debt Facility is secured by a mortgage over Sl Sydney data centre asset. Refer Note 17
(2) Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy. Refer Note 14(c).

8.50%

8.25%

8.75o/o

9.25%

9.50%

9.50%

20t12t2027

1410512028

2911112028
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(e) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Gomprehensive lncome

Propefi

APDC APDC APDC APDC
Group Group Trust Trust

I July 2013 to 24 July 2012to I July 2013 to I Nov 2013 to
30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2014 30 June 2013

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Rental income 11,608 3,140 11,608 3,140
Net gain from fair wlue adjustment for
inwstment properties 11,988 689 11,988 689
Direct operating expenses of properties that
generated rental income

(f) Operating lease receivables

The minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases of investment properties at
current rentals are as follows:

APDC
Group

30 June 2014
$'ooo

APDC APDG APDC
Group TruS Trust

30 June 2013 30 June 2014 30 June 2013

$'000 $'000 $'000

Within one year
Later than one year but not later than fw
years
Later than fire years

12,810

51,241
113,327

11,820

50,1 38

125,U5

12,810

51,241
113,327

11,820

50,1 38

125,345
177,378 187,303 177,378 187,303

15. Trade and other payables

APDC
Group

30 June 2014
$'000

APDC
Group

30 June 2013

$'000

APDG
Trust

30 June 2014
$'000

APDC
Trust

30 June 2013

$'000

Dewlopment fee payable - S1

Other payables - APDC Limited
Accrued interest - APDC Holdings
Accrued interest - Bankwest
GST payable
Other payables

425 425
424
39

80
98

65

327
236
163

73
215

327
241

95
Total trade and other payables 726 713 728 1,066

Other payables - APDC Limited include the responsible entity management fee of $59,000 payable to APDC
Limited, the responsible entity of the Trust. Refer to Note 7 for further details.
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16. Provisions

APDC
Group

30 June 2014
$'000

APDC
Group

30 June 2013

$'ooo

APDC
Trust

30 June 2014
$'000

APDC
TrusÉ

30 June 2013

$'000

Distributions paid and payable
Distributions paid

10,350
(7,762)

3,657
(1,576)

10,350
(7,762)

3,657
(1,576)

DisÉributions provided for at 30 June 2014 2,588 2,091 2,588 2,081

Employee benefits 20 6

Total other current provisions 20 6
Total provisions 2,608 2,097 2,588 2,081

The current provision for employee benefits includes accrued annual leave.

17. lnterest bearing loans

APDC
Group

30 June 2014

$'ooo

APDC
Group

30 June 2013

$'000

APDC
Trust

30 June 2014

$'000

APDC
Trust

30 June 2013

$'000

Commercial loan - Bankwest
Commercial loan - NEXÍDC
Other interest bearing loan - APDC Holdings
Unamortised fi nance costs

25,000
770

25,000

1,150

Total interest bearing loans 24,705 770 24,705 1,150

APDC Trust entered into a five year facility on 13 November 2013 with Bankwest (a division of
Commonwealth Bank of Australia) (Bankwest) to provide the Group with up to $29 million of asset secured
debt funding (Debt Facility). The Debt Facility comprises a cash advance facility with a maximum limit of
$25 million and a multi option facility with a maximum limit of $4 million. At 30 June 2014, there were no
drawdowns against the multi option facility.

The Debt Facility is a variable rate loan with interest charged at 2.15% above the Bank Bill Swap Rate. The
Debt Facility is provided for a five year term and is secured by a mortgage over 51 Sydney data centre asset.

ln December 2013, APDC Holdings repaid a $750,000 loan and paid $37,000 of interest to NEXTDC.

ln December 2013, APDC Holdings entered into an interest bearing loan of $750,000 with APDC Trust to
refinance the NEXTDC loan. The loan was unsecured, on commercial terms and interest was charged at
2.15o/o above Bank Bill Swap Bid Rate. ln June 2014, APDC Holdings repaid the $750,000 loan and $20,000
of interest to APDC Trust.

ln June 2014, APDC Trust repaid a $1,150,000 loan and $113,000 of interest to APDC Holdings. The interest
bearing loan provided APDC Trust with working capital for operational expenditure. The loan was unsecured,
on commercial terms and interest was charged aI4% above Bank Bill Swap Bid Rate.
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18. Financial instruments

(a) Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management program focusses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial
performance of the Group. ln this note, references to the Group include APDC Trust.

Risk management framework
The Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management
framework. The Board has established the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee (the Committee), which is
responsible for developing and monitoring the Group's risk management policies. The Committee reports
regularly to the Board on its activities.

The Group's risk management framework is designed to ensure that it has explicitly identified the risks it faces
and has measures in place to keep those risks to an acceptable minimum.

Risks are managed through the effective implementation of various measures and controls which include:

o Board approved compliance arrangements and the risk management framework;

. documented policies, procedures, compliance registers and checklists;

. ongoing monitoring of regulatory obligations;

. ongoing supervision of management personnel and service providers; and

o internal and external reporting.

As at 30 June 2014, the following financial instruments are held:

APDC APDC APDC APDG
Group Group Trusú Trust

Valuation 30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2014 30 June 2013
Basis $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial assets
Cash and cash equiwlents
Trade and other receiwbles
Securitv deposit held

Amortised cost
Amortised cost
Amortised cost

5,308
56

I

5,1 96
24

5

3,677 4,280
524556

Total financial assets 5,372 5,225 4,233 4,804

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

Dewlopment fee accrued - P1

lnterest bearing loans
Deriwtiws

Amortised cost
Amortised cost
Amortised cost

Fair wlue

726

24,705
393

713
8,330

770 24,705
393

1,066
8,330
1,150

728

Total financial liabilities 25,824 9,813 25,826 10,546

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risk: foreign exchange risk, price risk and
interest rate risk.

Foreign exchange rìsk

The Group currently only operates in Australia and its transactions are in Australian dollars. Consequently, the
Group has no exposure to foreign exchange risk.

Price risk

The Group is not exposed to equity securities price risk.
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lnterest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk predominantly through interest bearing loans. Loans issued at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest-rate risk.

As detailed in Note 17, the Bankwest Debt Facility is a variable rate loan, with interest charged a|2.15%
above the Bank Bill Swap Rate. Therefore, the Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps to manage its interest rate risk
Refer to Note 18(b).

At 30 June 2014, if interest rates increased by 100 or decreased by 100 basis points from the year end rates
with all other variables held constant, profit for the year would have been $173,000 higher/$173,000 lower,
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest income from deposits and interest expense on borrowings.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by
failing to discharge an obligation.

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, outstanding receivables and committed transactions. The
Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of its tenant. The Group
has one tenant (NEXTDC) and therefore there is significant concentration of credit risk with the Group. The
Group does not have the benefit of a bank guarantee from NEXTDC. Therefore, the credit worthiness of the
tenant is monitored and assessed by the Board, taking into account their financial position and operating
results.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Group's approach to managing liquidity is to maintain sufficient cash balances and adequate committed credit
facilities.

The Group manages its liquidity risk by using detailed forward cash flow planning and by maintaining
relationships with banks and investors in the capital markets.

APDC Trust's Debt Facility includes a multi option facility with a maximum limit of $4 million that can be used
for working capital purposes.

The following table provides the contractual maturity of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2014.

Carrying Contrac'tua I caslr fl ows
amount Less than

1 year
$'000 $'000

1to 2
years
$'000

2to 3
years
$'000

3to5
years
$'ooo

Over
5 years

$'ooo

Total
$'000

APDC Group:
Trade and other payables
lnterest bearing loans and

projected interest cost(1 )

Deriwtiws and projected

interest cost(1)

726 (726)

24,70s (930) (1,224) (1,220) (26,724)

(726)

(30,098)

393 (1 15) (151) (151) (643) (1,060)

Totaf financial liabilities 25,824 (1,771) (1,3751 (1,3711 (27,3671 (31,884)

APDG Trust:
Trade and other payables

lnterest bearing loans and

projected interest cost(1 )

Deriwtircs and projected

interest cost(1)

728 (728) (728)

24,705 (e30) (1,224) (1,220) (26,724) (30,098)

3e3 (115) (151) (151) (643) (1,060)

(1 ) Projected interest is based on the likely outcome of the loan or derivative conkact given the interest rates as at 30 June 2014.

Refer to Note 17 for further details on the interest bearing loans.
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Capital management
The Group's capital management policy seeks to maximise securityholder value through optimising the level
and use of capital resources and the mix of debt and equity funding.

The Group's capital management objectives are to:

. ensure compliance with capital and distribution requirements of the Constitutions and/or trust deeds;

. ensure sufficient capital resources to support the Group's operational requirements;

. continue to support the Group's creditworthiness;

. comply with capital requirements of relevant regulatory authorities; and

. safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a gorng concern.

The Group monitors the adequacy of its capital requirements, cost of capital and gearing as part of its overall
strategic plan.

The Debt Facility requires that APDC Trust must comply with the following financial covenants:

. Loan to valuation ratio (LVR) - maintain an LVR not exceeding 50% at all times. LVR is calculated as
the Debt Facility outstanding amount divided by the value of the security property (being the 51 data
centre). The LVR at 30 June 2014 is 39%.

o lnterest coverage ratio (lCR) - maintain an ICR of 2.0 times in respect of each period (financial year)
at the end of which ICR is measured. The ICR at 30 June 2014 is 9.3 times.

The Group's capital structure is continuously reviewed to ensure:

. sufficient funds and financing facilities are available, on a cost effective basis, to implement the
Group's strategies; and

. distributions to securityholders are made within the stated policy.

The Group is able to alter its capital mix by:

. issuing new stapled securities;

. activating the distribution reinvestment plan;
¡ adjusting the amount of distributions paid to securityholders;
. selling assets to reduce borrowings; or
o increasing debt facilities.

lnvestment properties are insured by the tenant (NEXTDC) with APDC Trust noted as beneficiary.

There are specific capital requirements for APDC Limited, as the responsible entity for APDC Trust and the
holder of an Australian Financial Services Licence (AFSL). APDC Holdings has provided a subordinated
commercial loan of $590,000 to APDC Limited, to ensure APDC Limited retains sufficient net tangible assets
for the AFSL requirements. Management monitors APDC Limited's net tangible assets on an ongoing basis to
ensure it continues to meet its licence requirements.

(b) Derivativefinancial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps to manage its financial risk as
permitted under the Group's risk management policy. Such instruments are used exclusively for hedging
purposes and not for trading or speculative purposes.

APDC Trust has entered into an interest rate swap agreement to fix the floating interest rate component for
$12.5 million of its Debt Facility (50% of the drawn Core Debt amount) for five years.

The interest rate swap agreement entitles APDC Trust to receive interest at quarterly intervals at a floating
rate on a notional principal amount and obliges it to pay interest at a fixed rate. The interest rate swap
agreement allows APDC Trust to raise long term borrowings at a floating rate and effectively swap them into a
fixed rate.

The interest rate swap is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument. Accordingly, the effective portion of
changes in the fair value of the interest rate swap is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the
derivative is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Refer to Note 3(o).

The fair value of the interest rate swap liability at 30 June 2014 was $393,000 (30 June 2013: nil).
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(c) Garrying amounts versus fair values

At 30 June 2014, the carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair
values.

(d) Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses recurring fair value measurements for financial assets and financial liabilities. These
fair value measurements are categorísed into different levels in the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs to
valuation techniques used. The different levels are defined in Note 14(d).

30 June 2014 Level I Level 2 Level 3 Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Derivatives
lnterest rate swap used for hedging 393 393
Total fìnancial liabilitiescarried at fair value 393 393

The interest rate swap is measured at fair value based on the mark to market value quoted for fonrvard interest
rate swaps. These quotes are tested for reasonableness by discounting expected future cash flows using
market interest rates for a similar instrument at the measurement date.

19. Contributed equity

Details No. securities(11

APDC
Group

30 June 2014
$'000

APDC
Group

30 June 2013
$'000

Equity
Ordinary securities - fully paid 1 15,000,100 116,260 116,657

Movements in equity
Opening balance
lssue of initial stapled securities
lssue of stapled securities on 31 December 2012
Loan forgiwn by NEXÍDC
Retum of capital

100

I 15,000,000

116,657

(3e7)

115,000
2,000
(343)

Closing balance 1 15,000,100 116,260 fi6,657

Represented by:
APDC Holdings
APDC Trust

1,150
1 15,1 10

1,150

1 15,507
116,260 116,657

(1) lncludes shares of APDC Holdings and units in APDC Trust, which are stapled. Refer to note 3(b) for details of the accounting for this
stapling arrangement.

Stapled securities

Each stapled security comprises one share in APDC Holdings and one unit in APDC Trust. They cannot be
traded or dealt with separately. Stapled securities entitle the holder to participate in distributions and the
proceeds on winding up of the Group entities in proportion to the number of securities held. On a show of
hands every holder of stapled securities present at a meeting in person or by proxy, is entitled to one vote. On
a poll, each ordinary shareholder is entitled to one vote for each fully paid share and each unit holder is
entitled to one vote for each fully paid unit.
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20. Reserves

(a) Movement in reserves

APDC
Group

30 June 2014
$'ooo

APDC
Group

30 June 2013
$'000

APDC
Trust

30 June 2014
$'000

APDC
Trust

30 June 2013
s'000

Asset Reva I uation Rese rve

Opeming balance
Transferfom retained eamings 11,988 689 11,988 689

Amount distributed
Closinq balance 11.802 11,802

Cashflow hedge reserve

Operning balance
Morement in effectirc cashflow hedges (393)

Clos balance

Total reserves I1.409 I1.409

(b) Nature and purposes of reserves

Asset revaluation reserve
lnvestment properties are carried al fair value at each reporting date with any gain or loss arising from a
change in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the year. At the end of each reporting period, any unrealised
gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of investment properties is transferred from retained
earnings to the asset revaluation reserve. The asset revaluation reserve comprises the unrealised gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties (excluding rent on unimproved land for
properties under construction).

Cash flow hedge reserve
The cash flow hedge reserve is used to record the effective portion of changes in the fair value derivatives that
are designated as cash flow hedges. Refer to Note 3(o).

21. Net tangible assets

APDC
Group

30 June 2014
$'ooo

APDC
Group

30 June 2013

$'000

APDC
Trust

30 June 2014

$'000

APDC
Trusú

30 June 2013

$'000

Total assets 156,1 16 128,557 154,933 128,1U
Less: total liabilities (28,447\ (11,900\ (28,414\ (12,627)

Net tanqible assets 127.669 116.657 126.519 I 15.507

Total number of securities on issue 115,000,100 115,000,100 115,000,100 115,000,100

$r.rr $r.0r $1.r0 $r.00
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22. Notes to the Statements of Gash Flows

(a) Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities

APDC APDC APDC
Group Group Trust

1 July 2013 to 24 July 2012to I July 2013to
30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2014

$'000 $'000 $'000

APDC
Trust

I Nov 2013 to
30 June 2013

$'000

Profit for the year

Non-cash items:
Net gain ftom fair wlue adjustment on

inrestment properties

Classified as financing activities:
lnterest expense and finance costs

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(lncrease/decrease i n assets
lncrease/(decrease) i n I iabil ities

21,755

(11,988)

3,314 21,755

(68e) (11,e88)

904

3,314

(24)
602

(68e)

3920843

(60)
126

(31)
294

(32)
(205)

Net cash flowsfrom operating activities 10,676 2,908 10,434 3,242

(b) Payments for investment properties

Acquisition of inwstment properties

Capital additions since acquisition
Less Equity-settled security-based
payment
Less Derclopment fee accrued - P1

Less Derclooment fee oavable - S1

(24,322)
(e8,

(25,165) (24,322)
(e8

(25
65)
65)

1 65)

16,1 35

8,330
425

16,1 35
8,330

425
(98,440) (24.3221 (98,440)

23. Related party disclosures

(a) Parent entity

The immediate and ultimate parent entity of the Group is APDC Holdings Limited. Refer to Note 24.

(b) Controlled entities

These financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the following subsidiaries in
accordance with the accounting policy disclosures as described in Note 3:

Ownership interest

APDC Limited 1O0Yo

APDC Trust

(c) NEXTDC Limited

(i) Significant securityholder
NEXTDC Limited (NEXTDC), a leading developer and operator of data centres in Australia, was the Group's
largest securityholder, with a holding 26.45 million stapled securities at 30 June 2013, representing 23o/o of
securities on issue at that date. On 3 July 2013, NEXTDC sold all of its securities. Refer to Note 23.

(ii) P1 development fee funding
For the purposes of providing funding certainty to the Group, NEXTDC granted the Group the right to issue
convertible notes to NEXTDC in satisfaction of the P1 development fee. The Group secured a debt facility with
Bankwest and used borrowings from this facility to pay all of the $23,800,000 development fee. No convertible
notes were issued to NEXTDC in satisfaction of the development fee and this funding alternative is no longer
available.
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(d) Key management personnel compensation

The key management personnel compensation for the year comprises

APDC APDC
Group Group

1 July 2013 to 24 July 2012to
30 June 2014 30 June 2013

$$

APDC
Trust

I July 2013 to
30 June 2014

$

APDC
Trust

I Nov2013to
30 June 2013

$

Short{erm employee benefits
Postcm ployment benefi ts
Termination benefits
Other long term benefits
Equitv-based oavments

454,076
31,558

219,228
16,595

485,634 235,823

(e) Individual directors and executives compensation disclosures

lnformation regarding individual directors and executives compensation and some equity instruments
disclosures as required by Corporations Regulation 2M.3.03 is provided in the remuneration report section of
the Directors'Report.

Apart from the details disclosed in this note, no director has entered into a material contract with the Group or
APDC Trust during the year ended 30 June 2014 and there were no material contracts involving directors'
interests at 30 June 2014.

(0 Movements in Directors'interests in stapled securities

The movement during the year in the number of stapled securities held directly, indirectly or beneficially, by
each director, including their related parties, is as follows:

Number
held at

Number
held at

30 June 2014I Julv 2013 Purchases Sales

lan Fraser
Greg Baynton
Chris Breach
Bewn Slattery (resigned 30 June 2014)
Francina Tumer
John Wriqht

50,000

16,605
20,500,000

50,000

50,000

16,605
20,500,000

50,000

24. Significant party disclosures

The following transactions with NEXTDC occurred subsequent to NEXTDC ceasing to be a related party on
3 July 2013.

(a) Transactions with NEXTDC Limited

Development agreements
On 29 November 2013, APDC Trust paid $22,969,000 of the $23,800,000 development fee for P1 to
NEXTDC, following practical completion of the base building. The remaining $831,000 was paid to NEXTDC
in February and March 2014.

On 23 August 2013, APDC Trust paid $325,000 of the $425,000 final payment to NEXTDC for 51. The
remaining $100,000 was paid to NEXTDC in February and March 2014.

APDC Trust was entitled to rent from NEXTDC on P1 base building whilst it was under construction under the
development agreement totalling $186,000 for the year.
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Lease agreements
APDC Trust has lease agreements with NEXTDC for M1 , S1 and P1 . The leases are on a triple net basis and
for a 15 year initial term with options for up to another 25 years. The leases provide for upwards only annual
CPI rental increases and market reviews every 5 years, not exceedingll0% of the preceding year's rent. The
rental income for M1, S1 and P1 totalled $11,607,000 for the year.

NEXTDC has the right to acquire M1, 51 and P1 in the event that the Group wishes to sell these properties.

Loan facility
On 3 December 2013, APDC Holdings repaid a loan facility of $750,000 from NEXTDC and on 20 December
2013 paid all outstanding interest of $37,000 to NEXTDC. This loan amount was used by the Group to satisfy
the minimum capitalisation requirements of APDC Limited's Australian Financial Services Licence. Refer Note
17.

Alliance with NEXTDC
The Group has an alliance with NEXTDC which expires on 21 December 2015. During the alliance period,
NEXTDC grants to the Group, for no consideration, the first right to develop or own a data centre on market
terms if NEXTDC wishes to sell those rights. The Group grants to NEXTDC: first right of refusal to lease
(lease rights) and/or, operate, develop, finance or manage (operation rights) on market terms any data centres
that the Group acquires, develops or establishes; the ríght to consent to the acquisition by the Group of any
data centre where the lease rights or operations rights cannot be offered to NEXTDC; the right to consent to
the sale of assets to a NEXTDC competitor and the right to consent to the acquisition or development of any
land or data centre. The rights under the alliance period apply to any data centre or land in Australia or Asia
Pacific region.

NEXTDC transactions and balances recognised in the consolidated financial statements

Gonsolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive lncome

APDC APDC APDC
Group Group Trus{

1 July 2013 to 24 July 2012to I July 2013 to
30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2014

$'000 $'000 $'000

APDC
Trust

I Nov 2013 to
30 June 2013

$'000

Rental income
lnterest expense on unsecured loan ftom
NEXIDC to APDC Holdings

Consolidated Stateme nt of
Financial Position

1 1,608

APDC
Group

30 June 2014

$'ooo

3,140

17

APDC
Group

30 June 2013

$'000

1 1,608

APDC
TrusÉ

30 June 2014

3,140

APDC
Trust

30 June 2013

$'000

20

$'000

lnvestment property
Derclopment fee paid - P1

Derclopment fee paid - 51
Rent on unimprorcd land receiwd for
properties under construction

Current liabilities
Derclopment fee accrued - P1

Trade and other payables
Derclopment fee payable - P1

Delelopment fee payable - S1

lntere$ bearing liabilities
Commercial loan - NEXIDC

23,800
425

186

45,075

8,330

23,800
425

186

45,075

8,330

689689

425

770

45

425
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Consolidated Statement of APDC
Changes in Equity Group

30 June 2014
$'ooo

APDC
Group

30 June 2013

$'000

APDC
Trust

30 June 2014

$'ooo

APDC
TruS

30 June 2013

$'ooo

lssue of securities under the Offer - I 0,31 5
Equity-settled security-based payment - 16,135
Loan forgircn by NEXIDC - 2,000

Directors' interests in significant party
Mr Greg Baynton was a director of NEXTDC to 30 April 2014.

Mr Bevan Slattery (resigned 30 June 2014) was a director of NEXTDC to 30 October 2013

10,315
1 6,1 35
2,000

25. Parent entity financial information

As at, and throughout the financial year ended 30 June 2014, the parent entity of the Group was APDC
Holdings Limited.

(a) Summary financial information

t",åt*?: 
"",ît?:I July 2013 to 24 July 2012to

30 June 2014 30 June 2013
$'000 $'000

Results of parent entity
Profit for the year
Other com orehensir,e income
Total comprehensive income for the year

30 June 2014 30 June 2013
$'ooo$'000

Financial position of the parent entity at year end
Cunent assets
Total assets

Cunent liabilities
Total liabilities

Contributed equity
Resenes
Retained earninqs

932
2,230

66
1,080

1 ,150

276
2,236

311
1,086

1,150

(b) Guarantees

No guarantees have been entered into by the parent entity.

(c) Contingencies

The parent entity did not have any contingent liabilities at 30 June 2014 (30 June 2013: $nil).

(d) Capital commitments

The parent entity did not have any capital commitments at 30 June 2014 (30 June 2013: $nil).
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26. Capital expenditure commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at 30 June2014 but not recognised as liabilities was $nil (30 June 2013:
$nil).

27. Contingent liabilities

There are no contingent liabilities for Group or APDC Trust at 30 June 2014.

28. Subsequent events

Since the end of the financial year, the Directors of APDC Holdings and APDC Limited are not aware of any
matter or circumstance not othenrise dealt with in the financial reports or the Directors' Report that has
significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Group or APDC Trust, the results of those
operations or the state of affairs of the Group or APDC Trust in financial years subsequent to the year ended
30 June 2014.
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Directors' Declaration

The directors of Asia Pacific Data Centre Holdings Limited and Asia Pacific Data Centre Limited as
responsible entity for Asia Pacific Data Centre Trust (collectively, 'the Directors') declare that:

(a) the Financial Statements and notes as set out on pages 14 to 47 and the Remuneration Report in the
Directors' Report as set out on pages 9 to 11 for Asia Pacifìc Data Centre Holdings Limited and its
controlled entities (Group) and Asia Pacific Data Centre Trust (APDC Trust), are in accordance with
the Corporations Act 2001, including:

giving a true and fair view of the Group's and APDC Trust's financial positions at 30 June
2014 and of their performance for the year ended on that date; and

ii. complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations.

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Group and APDC Trust will be able to pay their debts
as and when they become due and payable; and

(c) note 2 confirms that the Financial Statements also comply with lnternational Financial Reporting
Standards as issued by the lnternational Accounting Standards Board.

The Directors have been given the declaration by the Chief Executive Officer required by section 2954 of the
Corporations Act 2001.

This declaration is made in accordance with resolutions of the Directors of Asia Pacific Data Centre Holdings
Limited and Asia Pacific Data Centre Limited as responsible entity for Asia Pacific Data Centre Trust.

J t¿. l*
lan Fraser
Chairman

Brisbane
27 Augusl2014
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lndependent auditor's report to the stapled security holders of Asia Pacific
Data centre Holdings Limited and Asia Pacific Data centre Trust
Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial reports which comprise:

r the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2014, consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended on that
date, notes 1 lo 28 comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information and the directors' declaration of Asia Pacific Data Centre Holdings
Limited which comprises Asia Pacific Data Centre Holdings Limited (the Company) and
the entities it controlled at the period end and from time to time during the financial period
which form the consolidated entity (the Group).

o the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2014, statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for
the period ended on that date, notes I to 28 comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information and the directors' declaration of
Asia Pacific Data Centre Trust (the Trust).

Directors' responsibility for the financial report

The dírectors of Asia Pacific Data Centre Holdings Limited and the directors of Asia pacific Data
Centre Limited, the Responsible Entity of Asia Pacific Data Centre Trust (collectively referred to
as "the directors") are responsible for the preparation of the financial reports that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
the financial reports that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error. ln
Note 2(a), the directors also state, in accordance with Australian Accounting Standard AASB
101 Presentationof Financial Statements,thatthefinancialstatementscomplywithlnternational
Financial Reporting Standards.

Aud itor's re spon si bility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial reports based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing
Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit
engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error. ln making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the etfectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial report.
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M
We performed the procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial reports
presents fairly, in accordance with the Corporations Acf 2001 and Australian Accounting
Standards, a true and fair view which is consistent with our understanding of the financial
position and performance of the Group and Asia Pacifica Data centre Trust.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

lndependence

ln conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001.

Auditor's opinion

ln our opinion:

(a) the financial reports of the Group and Asia Pacific Data Centre Trust are in accordance
with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Group's and the Trust's financial position as
at 30 June 2014 and of their performance for the year ended on that date; and

(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations
2001.

(b) the financial reports also comply with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards as
disclosed in note 2(a).

Report on the remuneration report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in section 6 of the directors' report for the
year ended 30 June 2014. The directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of
the remuneration report in accordance with Section 3004 of the Corporations Act 2001. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the remuneration report, based on our audit conducted
in accordance with auditing standards.

Auditor's opinion

ln our opinion, the remuneration report of Asia Pacific Data Centre Holdings Limited for the year
ended 30 June 2014, comdies with Section 3004 of the Corporations Act 2001.

Kfufu¿..

KPMG

W '|//'ot/^d4

Jillian Richards
Partner

Brisbane
27 August 2014
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